OHI0 CONSTITUTIONAL MODERNIZATION COMMISSION

Bill of Rights and VVoting Committee

Prof. Richard Saphire, Chair
Jeff Jacobson, Vice-chair

Part |

July 14, 2016

Ohio Statehouse
Room 017



OCMC Bill of Rights and Voting Committee

Chair Mr. Richard Saphire

Vice-chair Mr. Jeff Jacobson
Rep. Ron Amstutz
Ms. Karla Bell
Rep. Kathleen Clyde
Mr. Douglas Cole
Hon. Patrick Fischer
Mr. Edward Gilbert
Sen. Bob Peterson
Sen. Michael Skindell

For Internet Access in the Ohio Statehouse: select "oga" from the list of network options.
A passcode/password is not required.



OHI0 CONSTITUTIONAL MODERNIZATION COMMISSION

BiLL OF RIGHTS AND VOTING COMMITTEE

V.

\2

VI.

THURSDAY, JULY 14, 2016
9:30 A.M.
OHIO STATEHOUSE Room 017

AGENDA

Call to Order
Roll Call
Approval of Minutes
» Meeting of May 12, 2016
[Draft Minutes — attached]
Presentations
» None scheduled
Reports and Recommendations
» None scheduled
Committee Discussion
» Atrticle V, Section 1 (Qualifications of an Elector)
The committee chair will lead discussion regarding Article V, Section 1

(Qualifications of an Elector) and what revisions, if any, the committee would like
to make to the provision.



VII.

VIIL.

XI.

[Testimony by Carrie L. Davis, Executive Director of the League of Women
Voters of Ohio, to the committee at its May 12, 2016 meeting — attached]

[Voters’ Bill of Rights as proposed by State Representative Alicia Reece, House
District 33 — attached]

[Excerpt on the ““Qualifications of an Elector” from The Ohio State Constitution,
by Steven H. Steinglass and Gino J. Scarselli, Oxford University Press - attached]

[Memorandum by Shari L. O’Neill, et al. titled “Introduction to and Comparison
of State Voter Registration Laws,” dated October 27, 2015 — attached]

[Memorandum by Shari L. O’Neill, et al. titled “State Provisions Regarding
Voting Age,” dated May 2, 2016 — attached]

[Memorandum by Shari L. O’Neill, et al. titled ““State Provisions Regarding
Purging Voter Rolls,” dated May 11, 2016 — attached]

Next steps

» The committee chair will lead discussion regarding the next steps the committee

wishes to take in preparation for upcoming meetings.

[Planning Worksheet — attached]

Old Business
New Business
Public Comment

Adjourn



OHIO CONSTITUTIONAL MODERNIZATION COMMISSION

MINUTES OF THE
BILL OF RIGHTS AND VOTING COMMITTEE

FOR THE MEETING HELD
THURSDAY, MAY 12,2016
Call to Order:
Chair Richard Saphire called the meeting to order at 9:37 a.m.
Members Present:

A quorum was present with Chair Richard Saphire, Vice-chair Jeff Jacobson, and committee
members Amstutz, Bell, Clyde, Fischer, Gilbert, Peterson, and Skindell in attendance.

Approval of Minutes:
The minutes of the March 10, 2016 meeting of the committee were approved.
Presentations:

Carrie L. Davis
Executive Director
League of Women Voters of Ohio

Chair Saphire commented that the committee would be taking up two new topics, Article V,
Section 1 (Qualifications of an Elector), and privacy, specifically whether the Ohio Constitution
should include a provision relating to a right to privacy.

In connection with the committee’s review of Article V, Section 1, Chair Saphire described that
the provision contains several specific requirements for voting in Ohio, including that a qualified
elector is a United States citizen who is age 18 or older, a resident of Ohio for certain time,
registered to vote for 30 days, and must have voted in at least one election in the previous four-



year period or is longer considered registered to vote.! He noted the last part of the provision,
the requirement of voting within a four-year period, is the subject of litigation in the U.S. District
Court for the Southern District of Ohio, Eastern Division, and that he is serving as co-counsel for
plaintiffs in that case, a fact he felt necessary to disclose to the committee. He said Article V,
Section 1 covers several controversial issues that have been the subject of litigation in Ohio and
around the country.

Chair Saphire then introduced Carrie L. Davis, executive director of the League of Women
Voters of Ohio (LWVO), who spoke to the committee regarding her organization’s
recommendations for changes to Article V, Section 1.

Ms. Davis began by noting that the national history of the League of Women Voters derives
from the women’s suffrage movement, but now has broadened its mission to engaging all
eligible voters in the democratic process. She said the group’s policy positions include
promoting representative government, citizens’ voting rights, and uniform election procedures
throughout the country.

She commented that, at the state level, LWVO has adopted a policy position that supports the
Ohio Constitution as a “clearly stated body of fundamental principles” that provides for the
“flexible operation of government and [is] logically organized and internally consistent.” She
emphasized that her organization’s recommendation for laws relating to voting is that voting be
“free, fair, and accessible.”

Ms. Davis first recommended that any revision to Article V, Section 1 include an
acknowledgement that voting is a fundamental right of all citizens, and indicating that anyone
meeting the qualifications of an elector has a fundamental right to vote.

She further described recent litigation involving the question of whether 17 year-olds who will
be age 18 by the general election may vote to nominate candidates to appear on the general
election ballot. She said the committee may wish to consider whether to incorporate language in
Article V, Section 1 on that topic, such as “of the age of eighteen years on or before the general
election.”

Ms. Davis also noted the provision’s residency requirements, suggesting alternative language
that would define a qualified voter as someone “who is currently a resident of the state, county,
township, or ward.”

She said LWVO also recommends eliminating the phrase “and has been registered to vote for
thirty days,” replacing it with “and is registered to vote as may be provided by law.” She
commented that this change would retain the general principle that an elector must be lawfully
registered in order to vote, but would provide greater flexibility for the legislature to modernize

! Article V, Section 1 provides: “Every citizen of the United States, of the age of eighteen years, who has been a
resident of the state, county, township, or ward, such time as may be provided by law, and has been registered to
vote for thirty days, has the qualifications of an elector, and is entitled to vote at all elections. Any elector who fails
to vote in at least one election during any period of four consecutive years shall cease to be an elector unless he
again registers to vote.”



the voter registration process. She said such a change would allow statutory change that would
accommodate voting for persons who move to Ohio within 30 days of an election.

Ms. Davis said her organization also supports voting reforms such as same-day registration and
automatic voter registration, noting that while Ohio lawmakers currently do not favor these
concepts, the positive experiences of other states that have adopted these measures may make
them more appealing in the future. She said the newest trend is automatic voter registration, with
four states now using it for citizens who meet specific criteria. She said in those states, the
registration is tied to bureau of motor vehicle records, and that other states are watching to see if
that procedure has a positive impact on voter turnout.

Thus, she said, refining the language in the constitution to allow “current registration as may be
provided by law” allows flexibility for the legislature to modernize the state process as new
technology and best practices become viable.

Describing the National Voter Registration Act (NVRA or “motor voter”) that was signed into
law in 1993, Ms. Davis said Article V, Section 1’s requirement that voters who do not vote at
least once in a four-year period are removed from the rolls is a practice that does not correspond
to the procedures set forth in the NVRA. She said LWVO “strongly recommends” that the
provision be amended to reflect current federal law, noting that “the legislative history of the
NVRA and the text of the act and related regulations make clear that voters should only be
removed from the rolls based on eligibility (i.e., they cease to be eligible) and that proper
safeguards must be in place to ensure no one is removed in error.”

Finally, Ms. Davis said the LWVO supports adding language that would make voter registration
permanent and portable within the state. She said the preferred procedure allows registered
voters who move within the state to remain registered, with the move requiring only a simple
update to their records. She said the General Assembly has recently adopted statutory changes
that make it easier for registered voters to file a change of address, and to do so online. She said
incorporating this concept in the constitution would ensure that registration reforms would not be
eliminated by future lawmakers or secretaries of state.

Ms. Davis having concluded her remarks, Chair Saphire asked whether she is aware of any state
that uses a birth certificate as the basis for automatically registering a voter. Ms. Davis answered
negatively but said that is one option that could be used. She said one concern with automatic
registration and online registration is that a lot of early adopters have relied on bureau of motor
vehicle records but not everyone has a driver’s license or state identification card. She said there
has to be a safety net provision, and that a birth certificate may be one option but there may be
other governmental records that would qualify.

Mr. Jacobson asked about voters who move to Ohio within 30 days of an election, specifically
wondering if the LWVO supports the removal from voting rolls of Ohio residents who move to
other states and register there. Ms. Davis answered that state and federal law already provides
for that situation. She said there should be adequate safeguards, so that voters who register in the
new state must give notice they want to cancel their registration in their prior state so that
cancellations do not happen in error. She said the idea is that, 90 percent of the time, voters will



register to vote in the new state and not use the registration in the old state. But, she observed, it
is important to be sure “snowbirds” are not disenfranchised. Voters who spend part of the year
in another state need to decide where their permanent residence is. She said the NVRA has
procedures for these situations.

Chair Saphire said if a voter moves and files a change of address form with the post office, the
secretary of state gets notice, but that information does not indicate that the person has registered
in the new state. He said it would be important that the change of address notice not be used to
automatically cancel the voter’s registration in the old state.

Ms. Davis said the NVRA, as well as Ohio law, spells out that when someone moves, the prior
state of residence gets a notification. She said, currently, the Ohio secretary of state, or board of
elections, is supposed to send a postcard verifying whether the person wants to cancel Ohio
registration.

Commission member Karla Bell asked whether the notice of a change of address triggers
removal from the rolls. Ms. Davis said that does not occur immediately, rather, once election
officials receive notice that a voter has moved, they are supposed to contact the voter to see if the
voter wants to maintain that registration. She said she is not sure, but she thinks the notice may
be sent to the voter’s registered address, with it being forwarded by the post office to the new
address.

Chair Saphire noted the system in Ohio is an amalgam of constitutional provisions, statutes, and
secretary of state directives, asking whether LWV O advocates or Ms. Davis is aware of a model
state constitutional provision that would cover these issues. Alternately, he asked whether there
is another state that handles these issues better than Ohio.

Ms. Davis said she does not have a model now but she would be interested to research the
question. Chair Saphire requested that Ms. Davis submit, in writing, her advice as to what
statutory framework would be better than Ohio’s current law, and Ms. Davis agreed to do so.

Committee member Ed Gilbert asked how removing the 30-day registration requirement from
the section and allowing the General Assembly to enact related law would solve the problem.
He also asked whether Ms. Davis would advocate a broader list of documents that would provide
proof of identity and residence.

Ms. Davis said the goal is to remove the 30-day requirement, allowing more flexibility in the
statutory law to provide for same-day or automatic registration. She said, right now, 30 days is
the maximum time allowed under federal law, and that Ohio is the outlier because other states
have a shorter time period. She said, originally, the rationale for having the early deadline was
the time that it took to process and verify, and before computers that made sense. But now, she
said, because it is easier to process information online and same-day and automatic registration
are becoming common.

Regarding sources of voter identification, Ms. Davis said the model is the Help America Vote
Act (HAVA), which describes a list of documents that may be used. She said Ohio’s voter



identification law, enacted in 2005, almost exactly mirrors the HAVA language, allowing use of
a driver’s license, state identification card, military identification card, other government
document, the last four digits of the social security number, utility bills, pay stubs, and bank
statements.

Representative Kathleen Clyde commented that, as a legislator, she has been frustrated by a
focus on voter fraud problems such as double voting and voter impersonation when the evidence
of these problems is lacking. She noted the fear of voter fraud has brought about legislation that
has made voting harder, such as shortened early voting or requirements for voters to complete
more steps. She asked Ms. Davis what she sees as the biggest problem in Ohio elections,
wondering what lawmakers should be focusing on to make voting easier.

Ms. Davis said the fundamental hurdle is perception. She said some people view voting as an
absolutely fundamental right, while others view it as a privilege or responsibility. The question
becomes where the onus is placed: is it on the government to provide a free, fair, and accessible
process that empowers everyone who is eligible, or is it on the voter who should have to take
steps to overcome obstacles?

Ms. Bell asked whether Ms. Davis is aware of any actual instance of voter fraud in the last ten
years. Ms. Davis said voter fraud is often mentioned but is extremely rare. She said it is also
important to note that there is a process to prevent it, and to punish it if it happens. She said the
most common problems are not in casting ballots but in the registration process. She said there
is a difference between voter registration fraud and in-person election fraud, observing there are
requirements along the way and many opportunities to verify information that minimize the risk
of fraud.

Mr. Jacobson commented that Ms. Davis is advocating that those protections be eliminated. Ms.
Davis said there are rare occurrences of fraud, with the most common fraud occurring when
someone helps another complete an absentee ballot, but that doing so is a statutory offense. She
said the secretary of state has widely publicized its investigations into election irregularities, but
only a tiny percentage lead to legal action. She said the number “is not an absolute zero but it is
very small.” She noted a handful of states offer Election Day registration, and they do not have
higher risk or incidence of fraud.

Rep. Clyde said she is concerned about the startlingly low voter turnout, noting that less than 40
percent of the voting age population participates in elections. She asked what can be done to
increase voter turnout. Ms. Davis agreed that voter turnout is a problem, but said constantly
changing election laws and adding more red tape discourages voters. Instead, she said it would
be important to consider inviting people to participate in the process, and that changes that make
it harder to cast a provisional ballot, require more forms, eliminate “Golden Week,” and adopt
the longest registration deadline in the country do not make it easy for voters. She said “voters
cue into these changes that say we don’t want you to participate.”



Representative Alicia Reece
House District 33

Chair Saphire introduced Representative Alicia Reece, noting that she appeared before the
committee in November 2013 to advocate for a voter’s bill of rights, and would be giving an
update on that effort in connection with the committee’s consideration of Article V, Section 1.

Rep. Reece noted that, in 2000, there was a bipartisan effort that resulted in laws to improve
voter access and election procedures, but that, since that time, this progress has been eroded. She
said that, since 2013, she has seen some of the problems caused by voter suppression bills. For
example, in her district, voters had to sue to get their votes counted. She said, during the last
general election, in Hamilton County there were problems with electronic poll books, with
several locations being subjected to problems that required an injunction to be filed to keep the
polls open so that everyone could vote. She said there is now pending a bill that will require the
posting of a bond to keep the polls open. She said she has seen thousands of votes go uncounted.
She noted a recent absentee ballot postmark issue that resulted in votes not being counted.

She said she is again bringing a voter’s bill of rights to the committee’s attention, describing that
the document is a list of rights prepared by two election law attorneys, Paul DeMarco and Don
McTigue. She said the bill of rights memorializes concepts that were agreed to after the 2000
election, but those reforms did not last because they were not put in the constitution. She
emphasized the view that voters should have a chance to vote on voting rights, and that “if they
are intelligent enough to vote on elected officials, they are intelligent enough to vote on voting
rights.”

Rep. Reece described voting as a fundamental right, and said placing a voter’s bill of rights in
the constitution ensures the General Assembly cannot reduce opportunities to vote. She said a
constitutional initiative effort is underway, with the proposed language having been approved by
the attorney general and the ballot board as a single issue. She said the effort has been slowed by
the organizers’ lack of funds, but that members of many organizations have volunteered their
time to help get petition signatures.

She said the voter’s bill of rights provides flexibility to the General Assembly to update voting
procedures, while at the same time creating a binding document of protection, and voters should
have an opportunity to vote on it. She noted that the bill of rights also would protect against
election lawsuits that cost the state and citizens many thousands of dollars.

Chair Saphire asked about Rep. Reece’s statement that the content of the voter’s bill of rights
derived from prior enacted law. Rep. Reece said those laws had been part of a bipartisan
legislation package, and that these are not new ideas. She said at least 90 percent of the voter’s
bill of rights was previously enacted law.

Mr. Jacobson disagreed, stating one provision in her proposal would allow felons in prison to
vote, which has never been part of Ohio law. Rep. Reece answered that her proposal allows
voting for felons who have done their time, but nothing allows felons to vote from jail. Mr.



Jacobson continued that the proposal is so broad that it would trump any state law that would say
otherwise.

Ms. Bell asked about the pending legislation that would impose a bond requirement for someone
seeking an injunction to keep the polls open. Rep. Reece said that bill, if enacted, would require
the posting of a $58,000 bond by a person who seeks an injunction to keep the polls open.

Senator Bob Peterson, speaking as a member of the Senate, clarified that the bond requirement
bill just passed the Senate, and said, under the bill, board of elections actions to keep polls open
would still be allowed. He described that, in the last primary election, despite there being
nothing filed with the court, a federal judge ordered the board of elections to extend hours in two
counties. He said, in that instance, in one Congressional district some counties extended voting
hours and some did not. He said, under the bill, each board of elections has to certify what a cost
per hour is for keeping the polls open, and that the purpose of the bill is to prevent frivolous law
suits. He said the proponent of the bill, Senator Bill Seitz, listed five circumstances in which this
law would have made a difference, and in none of those examples was the lawsuit filed by
individuals, but by a political party. Sen. Peterson also noted that, under the bill, a judge has the
authority to waive the bond requirement if there is a reason to believe that the expense is too
much. Thus, he asserted, the interests of the indigent have been met.

Mr. Gilbert asked Rep. Reece about the status of the initiative effort. Rep. Reece said they are
continuing to work on bringing organizations together on this topic. She said her group cannot
wait to pursue a ballot issue because too many events are occurring, with no protection in the
constitution, with many lawsuits, and continued efforts by the General Assembly to enact laws
that impede voting.

Chair Saphire thanked Rep. Reece for her testimony, asking for further comment from the
committee. There being none, he proposed at the next meeting the committee would be taking
up the privacy issue in addition to continuing its consideration of Article V, Section 1.
Adjournment:

With no further business to come before the committee, the meeting adjourned at 11:02 a.m.

Approval:

These minutes of the May 12, 2016 meeting of the Bill of Rights and Voting Committee were
approved at the July 14, 2016 meeting of the committee.

Richard B. Saphire, Chair

Jeff Jacobson, Vice-chair



10

This page intentionally left blank.



11

LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS® OF OHIO

17 South High Street, Suite 650 « Columbus, Ohio 43215
Phone (614) 469-1505  Fax (614) 469-7918
www.lwvohio.org

Ohio Constitutional Modernization Commission
Bill of Rights and Voting Rights Committee
Carrie Davis, League of Women Voters of Ohio

May 12, 2016

Chairman Saphire, members of the Committee, thank you for the invitation to share the League
of Women Voters of Ohio’s views on Article 5, Section 1 of the Ohio Constitution® about who
may register to vote and how.

The fundamental right to vote and voter registration have been key components of LWV’s
mission since our founding in 1920. We were born out of the women’s suffrage movement, with
the charge to register, inform, and empower women to vote. In the 96 years since, that mission
has expanded to engaging all eligible voters, women and men.

Today, the League of Women Voters, a nonpartisan political organization, encourages informed
and active participation in government, works to increase understanding of major public policy
issues, and influences public policy through education and advocacy.

LWV advocates on issues when our membership has studied an issue and adopted a position
through consensus. At the national level, LWVUS has adopted a number of public policy
positions relative to the right to vote.

» Representative Government - Promote an open governmental system that is
representative, accountable and responsive.

= Voting Rights - Citizen’s Right to Vote - Protect the right of all citizens to vote;
encourage all citizens to vote.

= Election Process - Support uniform national voting qualifications and procedures for
presidential elections.

! Article 5 Elective Franchise, § 01 Who may vote

Every citizen of the United States, of the age of eighteen years, who has been a resident of the state, county,
township, or ward, such time as may be provided by law, and has been registered to vote for thirty days, has the
qualifications of an elector, and is entitled to vote at all elections. Any elector who fails to vote in at least one
election during any period of four consecutive years shall cease to be an elector unless he again registers to vote.
(Amended, November, 1977.)



12

At the state level, LWVO has adopted an additional position on Government: Ohio Constitution
- General Criteria - LWVO believes a constitution should be a clearly stated body of
fundamental principles. It should provide for the flexible operation of government and be
logically organized and internally consistent.

Recommendations on Art. 5, Sec.1

The League’s overarching recommendation for any constitutional, statutory, or regulatory
provision related to the vote is that voting should be free, fair, and accessible. And as we also
have a state position that the Ohio Constitution should be a document of general principles, we
strongly urge this Committee to keep that broad “free, fair, and accessible” principle in mind in
your deliberations over what to include in Article 5, Section 1.

Article 5, Section 1 contains two clauses — the first spells out the qualifications of an elector, and
the second addresses when someone may cease to be an elector.

Clause A — Qualifications of an Elector

The first clause lists the following as the qualifications to be an elector in Ohio:

“Every citizen of the United States, of the age of eighteen years, who has been a resident
of the state, county, township, or ward, such time as may be provided by law, and has
been registered to vote for thirty days, has the qualifications of an elector, and is entitled
to vote at all elections.”

The League believes voting is a fundamental right of all citizens. This Committee could choose
to include such an acknowledgement in this section of the state constitution that anyone meeting
the qualifications of an elector as set forth herein has a fundamental right to vote.

In the primary election this spring, a question arose as to 17-year-olds who will be age 18 by the
general election and the extent to which they could participate in a primary election. Specifically,
17-year-olds could nominate candidates to appear on the general election ballot when they will
be age 18, but they could not elect candidates or vote on issues to be decided at the primary when
they are not yet age 18. This Committee may wish to consider whether to incorporate language
in Art. 5 Sec. 1 on that topic, such as “of the age of eighteen years on or before the general
election.”

We would suggest that this Committee and the OCMC legal counsel take a close look at the
phrase “who has been a resident... such time as may be provided by law.” There has been a line
of cases that call into question the constitutionality of durational residency requirements. See,
e.g., Dunn v. Blumstein, 405 U.S. 330 (1972). A state may require residency in order to vote, but
attaching a duration to the residency seems to be the threshold trigger for legal challenges. One
possible alternative would be to say “...who is currently a resident of the state, county, township,
or ward.”

We recommend eliminating the phrase “and has been registered to vote for thirty days” and
replace it with “and is registered to vote as may be provided by law.” This would retain the



13

general principle that an elector must be lawfully registered in order to vote, but it would provide
greater flexibility for the legislature to enact changes to modernize how we conduct our voter
registration. For example, this would allow the legislature to consider adopting:

- If aregistered voter moves from another state to Ohio within the month before an
election, the law could be changed to allow such persons to register here when they move
and have it take effect right away instead of missing out on participating in the election
because they were not yet a resident on the (current) 30-day registration deadline.

- The League supports moving to same-day registration (SDR) also known as Election Day
registration. Same-day registration has been demonstrated to be safe and accurate by the
jurisdictions that use it, and it has been shown to increase voter turnout.

- A growing number of states are also moving to automatic voter registration (AVR) of
citizens who meet specified required criteria. The League supports automatic voter
registration if it is done with the proper safeguards in place.

While current Ohio officeholders seem inclined not to adopt either SDR or AVR, as other states

utilize and refine such processes, they may become more appealing to Ohio lawmakers. Refining
the language in the constitution to allow “current registration as may be provided by law” allows
flexibility for the legislature to modernize the state process as new technology and best practices
become viable to adopt here.

Clause B — Cease to be an Elector

The League of Women Voters strenuously lobbied for the passage of the National VVoter
Registration Act (NVRA or “motor voter”) that was signed into law in 1993. The vision that
drove the NVRA is simple: the more people who vote, the stronger our democracy.

NVRA did two main things. It enabled many more eligible voters to become registered by
requiring government agencies to offer voter registration. And it set forth clear procedures for
voter list maintenance including when and under what circumstances voters may be removed
from the rolls.

The second clause of Article 5, Section 1 does not correspond to the procedures set forth in the
NVRA, and we strongly recommend that this provision be amended to reflect current federal
law. The legislative history of the NVRA and the text of the act and related regulations make
clear that voters should only be removed from the rolls based on eligibility (i.e., they cease to be
eligible) and that proper safeguards must be in place to ensure no one is removed in error.

In addition to aligning the second clause to use the NVRA process, we also encourage this
Committee to add language making voter registration permanent and portable within the state.
LWV supports permanent and portable registration. Once a person is registered in the state, even
if they move within the state, they are still registered, with the move becoming a simple update.
The legislature recently amended state statute to make it easier for registered voters to file a
change of address when they vote, and the Secretary of State even allows address changes to be
made online. Incorporating this permanent and portable principle in the constitution would



14

ensure that subsequent legislatures or Secretaries of State could not recant and make it harder for
Ohioans to move in state and still participate fully in our elections.

Thank you for the opportunity to testify, and we would be happy to answer your questions.

The League of Women Voters of Ohio, a nonpartisan political organization, encourages informed and
active participation in government, works to increase understanding of major public policy issues, and
influences public policy through education and advocacy.



200000

15

INITIATIVE PETITION

To the Attorney General of Ohio: Pursuant to Ohio Revised Code § 3519.01(A), the
undersigned clectors of the State of Ohio, numbering in excess of one thousand, hercby submit o
you the full text ol a proposed Amendment to the Ohio Constitution and a summary of the same.

TITLE
The Ohio Vaters Bill of Rights
SUMMARY

The Amendment would enact the Ohio Voters Bill of Rights by amending current Section
1 ol Article V of the Ohio Constitution with provisions to include that:

o The right of all Ohio citizens qualified under the Article to cast a ballot and have their
votes counted is declared to be a fundamental right.

e A person may cast a ballot at an election as an clector if the person is a citizen of the
United States, at least 18 years old, registered to vote by the deadline set by law, which
may not be more than 30 days before the election, and a resident of the county where
seeking to vote.

» The State shall maintain the broadest feasible and accessible means for persons to register
and update their registration to vote, including through electronic means. A certificate of
registration would be issued whenever a person registered or updated their registration 1o
vote.

«  Yoting shall be by scecret ballot. Every elector may vote on clection day between 6:30
am. and 7:30 p.m. at a convenient designated polling location. More than one such
Jocation where an elector may vole may be designated by local election authorities.

s In licu of voling on the day of an clection, electors shall be permitted (o vote in person or
by mail during the carly voting period, which shall begin 35 days before cach celection
and ¢nd on the day before the election for carly in person voling and the day of the
clection for voting by mail. During the early voting period, local clection authoritics must
make ballots available [or in person voting during their regular business hours at their
office or another location in the county and at other times during the carly voling period,
which shall include no less than 12 hours across the two days of cach of the final two
weekends before the date of a general election, 10 hours on cach weekday of the final
(wo weeks before cach general election, and 12 hours on the Tast day of voter registration
for an clection. Local clection authorities shall have the discretion to expand the hours ol
carly in person voling for an election and to designate multiple locations for carly in
person voting based on the identified needs of their counties, including making in person
carly voting convenient and casily accessible for working and non-working clectors.

¢« The State must make applications to vole by mail generally available, including
clectronically. An clector may return a completed and signed application o the
appropriate election authority by clectronic or non-electronic means. A ballot returned by
mail shall be timely il postmarked by election day and received by the appropriate
clection authority no later than 10 days alter the election. An elector who applies for a
vole by mail ballot may algo choose to cast a provisional ballot on election day, but such
ballot shall not be counted if the elector's vote by mail ballot is timely received by the
appropriate election authority.



»  An clector who chooses o cast a ballot 1i161 person during the carly voting period or on
cicction day, il required by law to verify his/her identity, may do so, with: the last 4 digits
of his/her social security number, a current Ohio driver's license or license number.
current ULS. Passport or passport number, current photo identification, utility bill, bank
statement, government check, or paycheck, or any current form of identification issuced (o
the person by the Stale, a political subdivision or instrumentality ol the State, the [ederal
government, a branch ol the U.S. Military, or a public or private institution of higher
cducation, or any other form ol identification authorized by the State for voting
identification purposes. If an clector is unable to provide any of these forms of
dentification at the time of voting, he/she shall be permitted to cast a provisional ballot
after signing an alfirmation under penalty of clection falsification attesting to his/her
identity, which shall be counted if the elector submits or causes to be submitted one of
the authorized forms of identification to the appropriate clection authority no later than
10 days after the election. Federal election law does not permit certain of these forms of
1D to be used to verify a voter's identity in a federal clection if the person registered by
mail and has not previously voted in a federal election,

e i an clector casts a ballot using a method and at a time authorized under this Article, the
ballot shall not be rejected for a reason attributable in whole or part to poll worker or
clection official error. Laws must be enacted to minimize the potential for such errors.

e Ifan clector marks his/her ballot in such a manner that it may not be properly recorded by
tabulation equipment, all votes on such ballot for candidates and issues which the elector
is entitled to vote upon shall be counted if local election authorities are able (o determine
the voter's intent.

s When an clector casts a provisional ballot in person in his/her county, but not in the
correct precinct, the ballot shall be counted but only for candidates and issues that the are
on the ballot in the precinct where the clector resides.

e A person who is unable to cast a regular ballot at an election shall be permitted to cast a
provisional ballot after signing an affirmation atlesting under penalty of election
falsification to his/her qualifications as an clector. The ballot shall be counted if the ballot
is cast in the person's county of residence and his/her qualifications as an clector are
verified. A provisional voter shall have up to 10 days following the election to submit or
cause to be submitted to the appropriate election authority information necessary (o
cstablish his/her qualifications as an elector or to have his/her ballot counted. To facilitate
the timely providing of such information, the identity of provisional volers al an ¢lection
shall be publicly available.

e The State may institute additional reliable means of voting that become available through
technological advancements.

« The General Assembly may pass laws expanding and facilitating the voting rights and
apportunitics guaranteed under this Article, but in no manner denying or limiting them.
The State shall not impose any qualificalion, except as provided in this Article, nor
impose a tax, charge or expense, as a condition to voting or registering or updating a
registration to vote.

o Any person requesting or casting a ballot who, with the purpose to defraud, impersonates
another person or voles more than once in an election, would be guilty of a felony.

The Amendment would repeal and replace the existing language ol Section | as set forth in the
full text attached to this petition. The existing language sets forth qualifications of an clector as
being a citizen of the United States. resident of the state, county. township or ward such time as
may be established by law and registered for 30 days before the election, and provides that any
clector who [ails to vote for 4 consecutive years ceases to be an elector unless he again registers
to vote. However, this 4 ycar provision has been superseded by the National Voter Registration



e y 17
Act ol 1993 that provides a person may only be removed from the voter rolls under specific
circumstances that include failing to vote at all in any 4 year election cycle that includes 2
federal clections. followed by specific action taken by the state to communicate with the voter.

COMMITTEE TO REPRESENT THE PETITIONERS

The following persons are designated as a committee to represent the petitioners in all matters relating to the petition or its
circulation:

Alicia Reece 2081 Seymour Ave. A Cincinnati, Ohio 43237
John R, Smith 3900 Delphos Ave. Dayton, Ohio 45402
Vernon Sykes 133 Furnace Rup Dr, Akron, Ohio 44307

Rev. Otis Maoss, Ir. 87 Haskell Dr. Bratenahl, Ohio 44108



18
FULL TEXT OF AMENDMENT

Be it Resolved by the People of the State of Ohio that Article V of the Ohio Constitution
is hereby amended to add the following to Section 1 as the Chio Voters Bill of Rights
and repeal the existing language of Section 1 shown below with strike throughs:

Section 1 Ohio Voters Bill of Rights

a. The right of all Ohio citizens qualified under this Article to cast a ballot and have
their votes counted is declared to be a fundamental right in this State. A person may
exercise this right as an elector in an election if he or she is a citizen of the United States,
at least 18 years of age on the date of the election, registered to vote in this State on or
before the deadline established by law, which shall be no more than 30 days before the
date of the election, and a resident of the county in which he or she seeks to vote.

b. 'The State shall maintain the broadest feasible and accessible means for citizens to
register to vote and update their voter registration, including through clectronic means.
The State shall issue a certificate of registration to all persons registering to vote or
updating their voter registration.

¢. Voting shall be by secret ballot. Every elector shall be permitted to obtain and cast a
ballot in person on the date of cach election between 6:30 am. and 7:30 p.m. at a
convenient designated polling location. More than one lecation where an elector may
vote on election day may be designated by local election authorities.

d. In licu of voting on the date of the election, every elector shall be permitted to obtain
and cast a ballot in person or by mail during the early voting period preceding the
clection, which shall begin 35 days before the date of each election and end the day
before the election for early in person voting and the day of the clection for voting by
mail. During the carly voting period, local election authoritics shall make ballots
available for in person voting during regular business hours at their office or another
location in the county and at other times during the early voting period, which shall
include no less than 12 hours across the two days of each of the final two weekends
before the date of a general election, 10 hours on each weekday of the final two weeks
before cach general election, and 12 hours on the last day of voter registration for an
clection. For carly voting periods, local election authorities shall have the discretion to
expand the hours of early in person voting and to designate multiple locations for carly
in person voting based on the identified needs of their counties, including making in
person carly voting convenient and casily accessible for working and non-working

electors.

e. ‘The State shall make applications necessary to obtain vole by mail ballots generally
available and casily accessible to voters statewide, including through electronic means.
Electors may transmit such completed and signed applications to the appropriate



clection authority through electronic or nonl—slectronic means. A ballot returned by an
clecter by mail shall be considered timely if postmarked by the date of the election and
received by the appropriate clection authority no later than 10 days after the election.
An clector whao applies for a vote by mail ballot may also choose to cast a provisional
ballot on election day, but such provisional ballot shall not be counted if the elector's
vote by mail ballot is timely received by the appropriate election authority.

f. An clector who chooses to cast a ballot in person on the date of the election or in
person during the carly voting period, if required by law to verify his or her identity,
may do so by furnishing any of the following at the time he or she requests a ballot: the
last four digits of his or her social security number, his or her current Ohio driver's
license or current Ohio driver's license number, his or her current United States
passport or passport number, a current photo identification, utility bill, bank statement,
government check, or paycheck, or any current form of identification issued to the
person by the State, a political subdivision or instrumentality of the State, the federal
government, a branch of the United States military, or a public or private institution of
higher education, or any other form of identification that the State may authorize
electors to use to verify their identity. If such person is unable to provide any of the
above at the time he or she offers to vote, he or she shall be permitted to cast a
provisional ballot upon signing an affirmation attesting to his or her identity under
penalty of clection falsification. In such case, the elector shall have until 10 days
following the clection to provide or cause to be provided to the appropriate clection
authority an authorized form of identification.

g. lf an clector has cast a ballot using a method and at a time authorized by this Article,
such ballot shall not be rejected for a reason attributable in whole or part to poll worker
or clection official error. The General Assembly shall enact laws providing for training
and other measures to minimize the potential for errors by poll workers and election
officials. If an elector has marked his or her ballot in such a manner that it may not be
properly recorded by tabulation equipment, all votes on such ballot for candidates and
issues which the elector is entitled to vote upon shall be counted if local clection
authorities are able to determine the elector's intent. When an elector casts a provisional
ballot at a voting location in his or her county of residence, but not in the correct
precinet, the election officials shall count all of the votes cast on such ballot, except any
votes for candidates or issues not on the ballot in the precinct where that clector resides.
A person who is unable to cast a regular ballot at an election shall be entitled, upon
signing an affirmation attesting under penalty of election falsification to his or her
qualifications as an elector, to cast a provisional ballot, which shall be counted if castin
the person's county of residence and it is verified that the person was otherwise
qualified under this Article to vote in the election. A provisional voter shall have until 10
days following the election to provide or cause to be provided to the appropriate
clection authority any information necessary to establish his or her qualifications as an
elector or to have his or her ballot counted. 'To facilitate the timely providing of such
information, the identity of provisional voters at an election shall be publicly available.



h. The State may institute additional rehgble methods for casting ballots as they
Lecome available through technological advancements.  The General Assembly may
pass laws expanding and facilitating the voting rights and opportunities guaranteed
under this Article, but in no manner denying or limiting them. ‘The State shall not
impose any q_ualificati(m, except as provided in this Article, nor institute any test, tax,
charge or expense, as a condition to voting, registering to vote, or updating voter

regisiration.

i In requesting or casting a ballot, no person shall, with the purpose to defraud,
impersonate another person or vote more than once in an election. Any person who

does so shall be guilty of a felony.

Luamee %ﬁﬂ—ef—ﬂae-‘de—Séafes—ﬂHhe—a ae-e-—m-a!ween—yka%-«dm hashaen asoaidang

etthosiatoeountitawns idod b done andd has

hoos Wlw%hﬂ-tj—éaj—e—lﬁs—ﬂae—qaﬂk f—f&ﬂ%ﬁ‘%—ﬁfﬂ%—-ﬁl’d@#@i—aﬁé—“ﬁ-
entitledtovete-atall olectons— : Hs-tovetain atleact opo-slection.

durpiae any o m#e%e%w%ue—yeﬂﬁ—ﬁhaﬁ—eease—m%-ﬁﬂ—éeete%wrh& ratiis
racisiorstovate:

[




21

1T

*90UBUIPIO) ISIMIIION 3}
Ppue uonMSUO)) 7HYT S JOpuUn s1055309paxd 531 woxy Aptresgrudys sragIp pue
1581 ur wondope sy sours sadueyd Auewr suoSrapun sey UOHOSS SIYY, "UOHIS[?
ue 210§oq sdep A3I[Y} 3SEI] Je 930A 0} SIOYSIZAT pUE DIeIS Y} JO JUSPISSI E ST
ap[o 10 33 Jo sTeak WLaYYSIe ST OYM Bz "§) AUE 03 2304 03 JYSBLI O $393
-uexens 3] O[O JO 9383 Y UT 9304 03 suoyeoyenb 3y soUIINO T WORISS

*9304. 03 51935131 UTeSe 21 S$OTUN 10309]9
e 24 0} 95890 [[eys SIBS4 2aINDSSUOD oj Jo porrad Lue Surmp uonos suo 39 IE
UT 2J0A 0} S[I¥J OYM 103030 LUy ‘SUORII [[¢ 38 3304 O} PA[IIUS ST PUB 10J93[0 Ue JO
suoneogrenb o3 sey ‘sdep £y 10§ 2304 03 pasysider ussq sey pue ‘me] 4q pap1a
-oxd aq £ew se suy yons ‘prem 10 drgsumo K3unod ‘e1e3s ST JO JUSPISaI € Teaq SEY
oym ‘sread usayyde yo afe oty yo ‘sorerg peyup) ST JOo USZNI AIeA 9J0A LETX OYM.

I NOILDHIS

"UOHMIIISUOD 381 0T 9outs s3y31r Sunoa Jo uorsuedse oy 10§ 9010§
Suiartp oty Weaq SeY TRyl ME[ [eISpa} OTF U *SUOISIAp 1moy) suraxdng '§
4q pue wommmsuo)) gy 9y 0} syuowpuatue £q pasodurn syusurermbsx
03 wroyuod 03 paydope a1em SpRTE SIY) UT suorsiaord Jj Jo um&&ﬁq V sy
e} pue ‘syuewrormbar wonos[s pue 30[eq ‘SIySH SUROA SUISOUGD A SPBIY

asiyoueld 9A128[7

A 3[d1lY




22

"99T “PHI 1ot

*99~6ST “M10 fo suoisnfJiT ‘TRI1ZISY, 938 gy

[EUOHMINSUOSUN SI9M 35USPIsal suosiad a3 AJ1ea 03 23e1s AU} 10F Aressaoou
oum} oY} puokaq SjuspIsaY mau uo poued Juprem e Susodun syusurarmbaz
£ousprse1 [euOnEIND JER POy 00D swradng "S) Y3 139e ‘9LET I “SUOROI[?
renuapisaxd 10y worstaoid [eads 93 PaUTE}aI PUB SYITO XIS 0} Teak aUO WOy
yustraxmbax Aouspise1 91} 25NPaI 0} UOKDIS SI} PIPUSWIE SI2J0A 33 ‘T LT UL
37838 T9T30 AUE U ST0302]2 NS O] 2)0A 0} PIFTUS J0U 213 L2} ST 3UO[ SE 533815
PRI 3T JO JUIPISaI] SOTA ST PUE JUSPISAIJ 2} 10§ SI0OI I0F 3304 [HS 03
suonospe oy ur Surjoa 10§ Juswranmbar Aousprsax Tea4-auo I} 199U J0U PIP
(O SYUSPISI ONY() JUSIIT MOJ[E 03 UOTIORS S PIPUSIE SI0A 3T} ‘LS6T U
“3STYDUEIJ O PAINDSS PEY SUBDLISWIY UBDLIY Iaye seak
30XU3-A3 PUE 3304 03 JYBLX 37} PISIULILNS 2I0M USTIOM ITeJfE STEaL 39X} ‘€T6T
UI UOTIM{SUO)) OY() 3Y3 JO UONIIS ST} WO} PIAORT A][EUl SI9M S[eul, pue
AIYM,, SPIOM YT, 'SUOHOS[S [EUONEU PUE 37e3S UT 3304 03 1481 o1y usTIOM 9AES
WORMTISUOY) "§7) Y} 03 JUSWPUSUIY YIUSSIRUIN Y3 ‘0761 Ul "TOHMNSUOD)
orgQ oy 01 aueyd AU 4q jou pue UOHMUSUOD ST A 03 JUSWPUSTIE
ue £q 2304 03 JYSII A} PaINdSs OO UL USWOM ‘SUBDLISWY UBILTY I
“UOBNIHSUOD) ‘ST
373 03 JUSTPULUIY YUY 313 Jo uondope oy Yim 0L8T UL 3304 03 1S oty
pesjuerens useq pey SUBDHISWY URDLFY St DOquiAs U0 319M TT6T PUE 81
UT UOTIH9S ST WOT 33TYM,, PIOM 33 2a0uIaT 03 syusurpuaure pasodoxd oy,
TIWOM. 0} 2J0A Y} PIPUIKS
AT P[NOM JRY) JUSTIPUSUIE [eUORTINST0D pasodord e pajeajap osTe s19304 31
‘4T 6T U "paroaler s1310A 913 JeT3 (0M3-4110F JO IN0) SIUSTWPUIUIE [PUOHTITSUOD
pesodoxd yydre oy Suoure sxom sresodoxd omy asay Inq 519304 973 03 2GM,
pIOM 97} pue S[EW, pIom ST SureuruN[d sresodoxd ereredss Surprargns ur
PSPS900TS UORUBAUOY) [EUORMIIISUOD) TTET SYL 44y STSI0A 37} 03 PIRIIINS 3G 03
UOHUAATIOD 3T} JO SS[NI ST} ISPUN 3304 JO ISQUINU JUSDIYNS B JALIIX 03 PI[Te}
n ndm&wdmam pasodoxd ot Jo ToA®y U TH—6 PII0A S9YESI[Rp 2 YSnoqyy:
gy UOTIURAUOD $/,~€/8T U} & PeOTPOIIUL OS[E SBM SNSST ojeredss e se s1ajoa
9T} 03 PSPIWIQNS US( ABY P[NOM JET3 I[EW S)IYM,, SAOWST 03 esodoxd v
“TOTI09$ ST} WIOL O[EW, PUB SIYM,, SPIOM I} SAOUIAI 0} stesodoxd
potoaler A[SUrunayMIaA0 Fas3moT ‘seyeSelep SY, SUSZHID "ST) 3q SI9304 [[E JeU3
juswrexnbax oYy pue juswarmbax £Louspiser reak-suo oy 3day Inq Juswarmba
UOTJEXE} 373 PRIEUILI[S UOTUSATO)) [EUORMINSUOD) S~0SST 9T 03 soyeSerp (]
*speox £3unod 10 drsumo} To payIom
Ao 1 2304 [[Bs Pnoo syustrexmba SUr0A ISTHO Y3 JOU O SITUMO 4339 doad
~uou ‘snyy, 1013 we jo Jydur oY) Suraey woxy L1els Y Ul 1eaf 3UO papisal
aA®Y oYM pUE ‘saunod 10 sdrgstmoy an0adser T JO SPEOT T3 U0 J0qE] 03
paredmos are oym ‘sreak suo-£3uam jo a3e 313 240qE ‘saosrod oeur a3rym yassid

€17 B A HIDILEV

, 7€v (0661
“07) Surysqnd UImpleg-syueg ﬁqﬂgﬁuv J00gpUYE] uonsuo) oo “po “IoYSIMG Y SBTUOTT, gy
6~H0T “PIAT pr

(410 fo suossnify

‘ogfeuona) S ‘(6661 4SIATL) 33eIS OTGO YL, ‘TORTSSIP "(IYd) /ET6T~C08T OO U Supe
~uoynIGSU0Y) PUR I9pUSL) 90Ty ‘WSPHRUR PUE 40 30 SUOSNPH,, ‘TEIZIT, “V BIRGIR] 938 ¢y

1T ‘(0661 ‘ss91d poomuaatyy

{10 “4rodisap) apmD 9oUsIA[EY VT UOHNISUOD) YIS fasaaf maN 2y, ‘STIRHIIM I Hoq0y os]p 228 “TST

! AommH ‘sy00q TOodYIUE] I0K MI ZV sarex] prae(] PO PT anbyy) 2a1ssa1804d Y M0 Jo somyod ayr, Ut
e Jo 9]0y 9} pue UOREUIPIONS SUSTIOM,,, “JapouTdS ‘Al [FRQRZH PUB qnET, 3UIPEN 938 451
°6 § “oUBUIPIO L8LT 11

03 S& PoNNSUOD 0§ 3q [[eYS A[ONIE SIY} UL PSUTeIU0d Burqo[u],, yeqs papord
TonMInSToD) ZOST 9Y3 JO § WOTDS ‘AT S[O1IY "Speol o17qnd wo yzom £q peyusa
-WNOID 3 P[ROD I9AIMOY JUSTSIMbaI UOHEXE} S, gy SOXE) £yradoxd Tear
oTaM SWIT} JRY JE SDUIISIXS U $3Xe} £JUN0D PUE 33838 £uo a1 90UIS SISUMO
£yradoxd o3 9304 03 3yd1x o1y payrun] £[PAn03pe juswarmbax 1oe] STYY, “XE}
Ayumod 10 ayeys & ‘Surded yim padreyd 9q 10 4ed 0} pue read e jsea] 38 10§ 33eIS
U3 U SpISaI 03 S1230A paxmbar uonmASUO) 7OYT Y3 JO T UOHOSS ‘Al SPTIIY
-syuowranmbal uonexe; pue £ousprsar pasodul Os[e WONMINSUO) ZO8T YL
p230IgNS
UBOLISUIY UEDLYy JsureSe 9304 Swrp1oop 91U 35€0 ‘UILY, prempy qusprsard wopusa
-U0D ST PUE ‘o3 B UI PIPUS 3304 3T} 1942M0Y ‘UOLLIIPISUOIDI UQ) 3304 03 18
9} SUEDTISWIY WedLFY Supued [esodoid e pasordde ATenTur pey WORUIATOD
[eUORMIISUOD) TOST I3 03 $33e33[aP YT, g,y IUBUPIO ISIMPION 973 Topun
pastypueguestp A]ssordxs usaq 30U pey Lo YSnoy) U2Ad syySur Surjoa patuep
SIoM SUBSIIOWY UBOLYY ‘Sni} pue ‘seTewr SYM 03 mmﬁ&% payruuT] %Hmwmumxo
os[e wONMNSUOD) 7OST YL 2304 03 1481x 9y} USWOM PITURP UOHMIISUOD)
TO8T 3P g5ruonMnsu0) L3szef MAN 9LLT 9T 3O uondeoxs Lrerodura a3
M STORMQSUOD dJels APed [le PUe SOUBWIPIQ ISIMIPION 33 YHM SV
"s31e30[ep WORUAAUOD 10§
3304 03 SOUBUIPIQ) JSIMIIION ST} Iopun peyenb pey oym s10303[0 PIMOT[E 10V
Surjqeuy SY3 DUIS 330 OS[e P[IOd “Iasamoy ‘sade ) JO PIOYSRL B PIUMO
oYM STUSZRIDUON ‘Tea4 ® 35B9] 18 10J AIOILIIA} S} UL PIPISaI PrY Aoty se Suof
e UORURAU0,) [EUOHMITSUOD) TOST U 03 so3eSa[op 10§ 2104 03 X} £3UMOD 10 TeLr
-0311193 © pred oYM $31e}§ PIITL) ST} JO SUSZHID A[EW YNpPE peprurad ssax8uo)
4oy Surqeuq oY) IpU[) SUSZRD 'ST) I0f juswermber ame-Ag oY PIM
pasuadstp ‘uoTun 943 O3UT UOISSTUIPE S,01Y() 10§ SIS} AU} 308 YOIGM. 4oy Surjqeuy
7081 Y1, POURWPIQ) /8.1 A Iopun a1nye[SISe] [eII0)LLIS) 9T 03 sAeIussardar
10§ 9304 pod sTeuoREU USBI0] 910§0I3Y) PUE ‘S37E}S 37 JO AUO JO SUSZNI 2 03
SARY] JOU PIP SI2JOA 1,1°S3YE3S ST} JO SUO JO USZHID B SEAM URTH T} ISTIIYM UO Bur
-puadep ‘s1eak 0M3 10 9UO 10§ ATOJLLIS) SY} UF PPISI PUE  SIIOE A3y ur proyas,
® POUMO OTM SO[EUI 0} 3304 03 JYSIT Y} PIFIW] DTEWPIQ ISSMPMON YL,

NOILOLILSNOD HLVLS OIHO H#HI & TIT



23

-wonsenb ojur woOSYS 21 [[ed 10 JNsa1 o1 23URYD JOYIID 03 PR E
aToMm $9304 YSnOUS JeT) prepuess jeyy £q aa01d 10U pIp oY ‘poIIMO00 PeY SINLIE]
-n3e111 JeY) 5ULPIAS SupUIAU0D pue Tes]o £q pasoxd 3sed Jey W 1a8us|Teyd o1
ySnoyiry “(SOT ‘v4dns Suoysarg) JUOWOS[E SR JO YNSAI S} UEIIDIUN YT
10 98ueTp 03 53304 ySnous payospe sanrremSern 1o Ayemdaii o3 Jey (T) pue
pa1modo seyrrenSoL UoNDs[e aI0W I0 JUO 13 (1), DUIPLS Surourauos
pue xeap 4q as01d 03 peq reSuSTeYd E ‘HORII[S Ue SPISE 39S 0} I9PIO UL JeTH
Py 3IN0D Y], "JSeD VO[T SIITR J340 JO N0 $330A HET'T £q 350] 1aSus|eyd
a3 a1eyMm [eraued AsuIopE 10§ WORDS[R Y3 03 2BUS[[EYD T PIAJOAUT UOKHIIF
a4 u[ "pIEpUE}S JQROP S[qEUOSEAI B PUOLR], SME[ [PUTUIID o3 £q permbar
ye se Jea1d se jou nq (3OU Uey L[] 2I0W) SDUSPIAS U} JO asuerspuodaid
® T} 1978913 90USPIAL ‘SI JBYI—a0UudpIad  SuuIatod pue Tes], £4q paysIqesse
2q 3snwr “ressmoy ‘sonuren3arm yong (1661 Trious Aauaogry fo o oy 4of
V66T ‘9 00N Jo 101931 24 UI) TORIS]D U JO SINSII 3T 2PISE Suras 10§ spunoxd
a1e seumoew Supos YIM swajqoid puB SIUIBU SIEPIPUED dJEJ0OI Apedoxd oy
a1mjrey a1 se Yons senurenSer Sunoa Jeqs p[ay sey 3mo)) swaidng oy 2T,

 uonisod enba A[qeuosesl, € 9T $9)ePIPUED YOS SIALS JE POTHOI JOYJ0
fue 10 wopryo1 pupard-£q-pumard mofe 03 reak BurmoT[oF 91} PopUSTIE SEM
wonods SY, *(YL6T ‘shauoisspuuio)) fo pavog Auno) uipsvp Jooy 14 %2 231313)
stseq Joumard-£q-pouraid & U0 saUreU Pajejol ey} SUROA JO SUEIU IS0 pue
seurgoew Suposjo asn oy payqryord yustwaambaz s yet pani3mo)) surardng
o1qO 9P bL6T Ul s3uoleq sureu yons YoTgm Ul dnox8 a1 yo “4ue Jr ‘eoerd
SIRIPSUIISIUT YoES UI PUE ‘pUs 3 38 ‘Suruuidaq 213 e soUM JO oqunu [enbs
we Arenueisqns, readde o3 9]qissod se AJreau se ‘parmbar sem SWIEU S3JEPIPUEd
oD “U0NODS STY3 JO UOTSISA TeUrSIIO ST JSPU[) ISIY P3IST] 2T OYM SJePIpUEd
SurToA®} SN} PUE IOPIO SUreS AU} UT SJePIpUes Sunsy woxy sjo[eq Jo Ayzofew
® 10 e Jusaa1d 0} SIUIEU SJEPIPUED JO WOHE}0I 913 saxmbar os[e ez uonI9g
$30150 o2 ds 03 SoTePIPUED 10§ 358D 3q IS $3)0A YOTYM UT 0[[eq 2d43-05550
e Suimbax £q Supoa Jo et JeUR s1oefo1 b7 WONDIS J0[[eq 33 U0 X, 3[Surs
& Supjrewr £q 9304 Lred JySrens € }s€d P[NOD S1330A ‘aonydope suond9s STy}
ar03eq seryred reonrjod $oyeprpued 313 UO Uy} J2YFel 91O 10§ SAJEPIPUEd ST U0
$1030A STID0F 03 3YSN0S BZ WOPDDS ‘96T UT POPUSWIE }5B] PUE 6361 Ul pardopy

“ayepIpUed 1oT30 £Ue 10§ 3)04 STY JO UOTEdIpUI 37 wog Apjeredes
3yepIpUED YDEa 10§ 3304 ST Sunestpur 4q Ueyy Aem. 130 ou ur pue A[uo Auoﬁgow
JURUSINS]] PUE I0W3A0S J0J S3IEPIPUED et} ISY30 PUe ‘SoYel§ PIIIU(] 3T JO yuaprsaxd
2014 pue JuapIsaid JO $10199[9 I0] SSIEPIPUERD UBY} IOURO) SAEPIPUED I0F 304 Aewr
103030 Uy "pajurrd ST STIEU SPFEPIPUED Y3 YOTYM UY JET} B 908) ad43 yusururoxd
$59] UI STIRU 5272PIPUES YLD Taje 10 opun payuiad aq [Teys Kue gt “43red sorepIpUEd
1joes yo uoneuSIsep 10 ureu oy Jo[Jeq 3y uo sreadde noneudisep L1red s3yeprpuEd
® YoM UT uonosfe AUe 1y pasn ampadoxd Supos a3 03 syerrdoxdde pue yeonoerd
Jua3¥s 9T 03 sporgew o]qeredwos IsY30 Jo vonejox £4q uontsod enbs Ajqeuosear
sureu sayepIpUes Yoes 2413 [[EYS S10[[eq YoTyM £q sueawx oy me] £q opraoxd Jreys

SIZz @ A HIDIIEV

“((¥661)1-99ELET O3 ELGT “TLET §F
ST TH 3E pepuste st mmmmuouv L€ ‘18IS 6 ‘0TT-68 ON 1 °qnd ‘S96T 3O PV mﬁwa Sunop $H1

£]quuassy [e1oUR5) YT, SOTHO T} JO A3 9 Iopun dnoi3 e uy peBuere 3q [[eys won
-23[0 AU 3 3OO TE 103 SIYEPIPUED J[E JO SITTEU T, “JO][eq UO S3TPIPULD Jo sdmeN

®Z NOILDAS

gv1"SO6T JO IOV STYSRY SUNOA 13 Se YomS ‘ssorduon) £q pejoeus sme] £q pue
qronynysuoy) 'S Y3 £q ‘(BT Uondes A WY 33 ‘a05) wopMRSUO)) OO Y3 JO
suorstao1d 19130 £q payruut] ose st reod s A[qUIsSSY TexsUaD) SYL, (9681 ‘@pog »
upaIPg ‘J24 %2 2§p]S) T WOTRS ‘T B[OTIY JO ISNE[ YU pue uorosjoxd [enba
ST PR UOHO3S STY) JO SHUI| T3 UM SJUSWSIMb3I 10][eq SULIAAP 03 remod
oy A[quuessy [eIousn) 9T} $AI8 A[quIsssy [eIOULD AR UL 1omod oarye[sida]
$159A YOTYM T TONOIS ] SPPBIY JEY3 P[oY OSTE SEY JMOD sweidng orgQ YT,
“SUOIJE[OTA ME]
wopoape 1e0 pue Supredure) 10[[eq M JUEPUSIP SwBreyo oses [RUTWLD
 UT 95USPIAD SE $30[[eq JO 351 9T JIqryo1d 10U S0P UOTD2S STY} 383 PR IMNOD
ouraxrdng omQ G ($00T) uosyv[ @ 23p3g UJ JO[e] BI3S B 03 181 aanjosqe
Ue 278210 30T SIOP UOTII3S STY} £73109S ST UOLOIS ST} JO FTEW[EY ST SFYM
“(*PIqr) TIOR29S SI SJE[OTA 10U S20P $3O[[Eq 2108 SINSTD JT ST Sumoa
J0 9sn ot Swzrrowne Me[ ® STYL, (6761 U4 10D aunpvy Susagsisag oy
a4 %2 2JP3S)  £59I09S SIS [[LM YDTYM STORD[ Suponpuod JO POYIIW,, 10 WISAS
® 07 Inq 52304 3580 03 pasn 1aded Jo J2oTS [EWS € 0} 1J2T JOU S0P TUORIDS ST Uf
Pasnse JO[[eq,, PIOM YT, "POPUSLIIE U] IPASU ST UOHIS ST 7 UOT3S A APIIY
se wmeqiea pajerodioour pue ‘7 uonods AJ SPBIV Se TO8T U pardopy

-j07[eq £q 2 J[EYS SUONO3R [[V "10[feq £g
T NOILDHIS

‘1051397101 35U porrad Tea4-100]
Surpeoa1d o UI IO 3SES] I8 9J0A 03 [TeJ OTM SIOIR[H -worenSI3el IOV} Urejuret
03 sTeaA MOy L1249 30T ISES] 3¢ 2304 03 §10102]> FuEINbT UOOS ST 03 33U}
-uos 35%] 3} PIPPE LL6T UF yusTIpuLTE Ue A[Teury ‘TL6T UL PIYHEX SeM GOt
‘ToPMIRSUON) "ST) A 03 JUSWIPUSUTY (FXIS-AUIMT, 37} 03 ULIOFUOD 03 uoayyBre
03 au0-£juam3 wioT yuewormbax a3e 3y} PIONPaT OS[e JUSWPURULE 9LGT YL
“(10°€0S€ § "D'0) pored £ousprsar
fep-£r © sexmbax ME] OTYQ JUSLIND ‘UORMITSUOD) "§) 9 3O suoryezardroyar
YIIM JUSISISTOD) 'SUOROS[? [[e 10§ Juewarmbar Lousprsar o Xy 03 Arone
£]quuessy [eIaUa5) 97} SALS 0] PUE SUOHII? renuaprsexd 10y uorsiaoid fereds o
oyeuTuy> 03 UoTsTA0Xd ST papusUTe UreSe s1930A 9 (TLET ‘Wagsnd @ uun(T)

NOILALILSNOD HIVLS OIHO EHI B 1T



24

This page intentionally left blank.



25

Bill of Rights and Voting Committee

Planning Worksheet

(Through June 2016 Meetings)

Preamble
Preamble
Committee Committee Committee OCMC OoCMC OCMC
Draft Status 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approval CC Approval 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approved
Article | — Bill of Rights (Select Provisions)
Sec. 1 — Inalienable Rights (1851)
Committee Committee Committee OCMC OoCcMC OCMC
Draft Status 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approval CC Approval 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approved
Sec. 2 — Right to alter, reform, or abolish government, and repeal special privileges (1851)
Committee Committee Committee OCMC OoCMC OCMC
Draft Status 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approval CC Approval 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approved
Completed 12.11.14 2.12.15 2.12.15 3.12.15 4.9.15 6.11.15 6.11.15




26

Sec. 3 — Right to assemble (1851)

Committee Committee Committee OCMC OoCMC OCMC
Draft Status 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approval CC Approval 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approved
Completed 12.11.14 2.12.15 2.12.15 3.12.15 4.9.15 6.11.15 6.11.15
Sec. 4 — Bearing arms; standing armies; military powers (1851)
Committee Committee Committee OCMC OoCcMC OCMC
Draft Status 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approval CC Approval 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approved
Completed 12.11.14 2.12.15 2.12.15 3.12.15 4.9.15 6.11.15 6.11.15
Sec. 6 — Slavery and involuntary servitude (1851)
Committee Committee Committee OCMC OoCcMC OCMC
Draft Status 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approval CC Approval 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approved
Started
Sec. 7 — Rights of conscience; education; the necessity of religion and knowledge (1851)
Committee Committee Committee OCMC OoCMC OCMC
Draft Status 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approval CC Approval 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approved
Sec. 11 — Freedom of speech; of the press; of libels (1851)
Committee Committee Committee OCMC OoCMC OCMC
Draft Status 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approval CC Approval 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approved




27

Sec. 13 — Quartering troops (1851)

Committee Committee Committee OCMC OoCMC OCMC
Draft Status 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approval CC Approval 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approved
Completed 49.15 6.11.15 6.11.15 7.9.15 9.10.15 10.8.15 10.8.15
Sec. 17 — No hereditary privileges (1851)
Committee Committee Committee OCMC OCMC OCMC
Draft Status 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approval CC Approval 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approved
Completed 4.9.15 6.11.15 6.11.15 7.9.15 9.10.15 10.8.15 10.8.15
Sec. 18 — Suspension of laws (1851)
Committee Committee Committee OCMC OoCMC OCMC
Draft Status 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approval CC Approval 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approved
Sec. 19 — Eminent domain (1851)
Committee Committee Committee OCMC OCMC OCMC
Draft Status 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approval CC Approval 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approved
Sec. 19b — Protect private property rights in ground water, lakes, and other watercourses (2008)
Committee Committee Committee OCMC OCMC OCMC
Draft Status 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approval CC Approval 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approved




28

Sec. 20 — Powers reserved to the people (1851)

Committee Committee Committee OCMC OoCMC OCMC
Draft Status 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approval CC Approval 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approved
Completed 11.12.15 N/A 11.12.15 12.10.15 12.10.15 1.14.16 1.14.16
Sec. 21 — Preservation of the freedom to choose health care and health care coverage (2011)
Committee Committee Committee OCMC OCMC OCMC
Draft Status 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approval CC Approval 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approved
Article V — Elective Franchise
Sec. 1 — Qualifications of an Elector (1851, am. 1923, 1957, 1970, 1976, 1977)
Committee Committee Committee OCMC OCMC OCMC
Draft Status 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approval CC Approval 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approved
Sec. 2 - By ballot (1851)
Committee Committee Committee OCMC OCMC OCMC
Draft Status 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approval CC Approval 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approved
Sec. 2a — Names of candidates on ballot (1949, am. 1975, 1976)
Committee Committee Committee OCMC OCMC OCMC
Draft Status 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approval CC Approval 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approved




29

Sec. 4 — Exclusion from franchise for felony conviction (1851, am. 1976)

Committee Committee Committee OCMC OoCMC OCMC
Draft Status 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approval CC Approval 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approved
Completed 11.12.15 N/A 11.12.15 12.10.15 12.10.15 1.14.16 1.14.16
Sec. 6 — Idiots or insane persons (1851)
Committee Committee Committee OCMC OoCMC OCMC
Draft Status 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approval CC Approval 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approved
Completed 9.10.15 11.12.15 3.11.16 4.14.16 4.14.16 5.12.16
Sec. 7— Primary elections (1912, am. 1975)
Committee Committee Committee OCMC OoCMC OCMC
Draft Status 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approval CC Approval 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approved
Sec. 8 — Term limits for U.S. senators and representatives (1992)
Committee Committee Committee OCMC OoCcMC OCMC
Draft Status 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approval CC Approval 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approved
Transferred to Legislative Branch and Executive Branch Committee
Sec. 9 — Eligibility of officeholders (1992)
Committee Committee Committee OCMC OoCcMC OCMC
Draft Status 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approval CC Approval 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approved

Transferred to Legislative Branch and Executive Branch Committee




30

Article XVII — Elections

Sec. 1 — Time for holding elections; terms of office (1905, am. 1954, 1976)

Committee Committee Committee OCMC OoCMC OCMC
Draft Status 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approval CC Approval 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approved
Sec. 2 — Filling vacancies in certain elective offices (1905, am. 1947, 1954, 1970, 1976)
Committee Committee Committee OCMC OoCMC OCMC
Draft Status 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approval CC Approval 1% Pres. 2" Pres. Approved




31

This page intentionally left blank.



32

This page intentionally left blank.



33

This page intentionally left blank.



OHI10 CONSTITUTIONAL MODERNIZATION COMMISSION

2016 Meeting Dates
September 8
October 13
November 10

December 8





